HISTORY OF OFFUTT AIR FORCE BASE
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Offutt’s great heritage began with the construction of Fort Crook between 1894 and 1896, some 10 miles south of Omaha and 2 miles west of the Missouri River.  The new Fort’s namesake was Major General George Crook, a renowned Indian fighter and Civil War hero.  Many of the original structures built on the post are still used today.

On 20 June 1896, the 22nd Infantry assumed command of Fort Crook.  Other US Army Infantry units shared command of the fort as each rotated tours in Cuba, the Philippines, and the Texas-Mexican border.  The 61st Balloon Company became the first air unit to command the post on 10 September 1918.  In the spring of 1921, a field was built suitable for frequent takeoffs, landings, and refueling of military and government aircraft on cross-county flights.  On 10 May 1924, Fort Crook’s flying field was designated Offutt Field honoring First Lieutenant Jarvis J. Offutt who was Omaha’s first air casualty during World War I.

In late 1940, the Army Air Corps chose Offutt Field as the site for a new bomber plant.  The plant’s construction included two mile-long concrete runways, six large hangars and a huge 1.2 million square foot aircraft assembly building.  The Glenn L. Martin Company plant reached full-scale production in June 1942.  A total of 531 B-29 “Superfortresses” and 1,585 B-26 “Marauders” were built by the end of World War II.  These aircraft included the “Enola Gay” and “Bock’s Car” the B-29’s that dropped the atomic bombs at Hiroshima and Nagasaki, Japan.  Production ended on 18 September 1945.
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In June 1946, the Army Air Force redesignated Fort Crook and the Martin-Nebraska facilities as Offutt Field.  On 13 January 1948, Offutt Field transferred to the new Department of the Air Force and became Offutt Air Force Base.  Eleven months later Offutt AFB gained international prominence and a place in history, at one minute past midnight, 9 November 1948, as the host base for Headquarters, Strategic Air Command (SAC).

The old frontier fort underwent startling changes in the Cold War years following World War II.  Operations at Offutt included the basing of alert bombers and tankers in the late 1950’s and 1960’s, support for intercontinental ballistic missile sites in Nebraska and Iowa in the 1960’s, and worldwide reconnaissance from the mid-1960’s to the present.  Offutt’s population and facilities grew dramatically to keep pace with the increased operational demands.  Headquarters SAC moved from the Martin-Nebraska complex to Building 500 in 1957, and new base facilities in the 1960’s and 1970’s included a hospital, main exchange, commissary, and library.  Several new dormitories and over 2,000 family housing units were built in the late 1950’s and 1960’s.

With the end of the Cold War, the military underwent drastic changes and reorganization in the early 1990’s. Strategic Air Command disestablished on 1 June 1992 and the US Strategic Command, a unified command, activated on 1 June 1992.  With the historic change, the operational control of Offutt became the responsibility of Air Combat Command, another one of the Air Force’s new commands.

The former Army outpost, once hard-pressed to support a few hundred soldiers, enters the turn of the century with the resources and facilities to accommodate a combined military and civilian work force of some 12,000, while supporting nearly 20,000 dependents. Offutt AFB has undergone many changes but continues to be vital to the US military. If the base follows this same track, it will be important to the national defense for many years to come.
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